) Earth Negotiations Bulleti

A Reporting Servicefor Environment and Devel opment Negotiations

Vol. 12 No. 114

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (1ISD) Wednesday, 27 October 1999

HIGHLIGHTSFROM THE FIFTH
CONFERENCE OF THE PARTIESTO THE
FRAMEWORK CONVENTION ON
CLIMATE CHANGE
TUESDAY, 26 OCTOBER 1999

Delegatesmet al day in ajoint session of the Subsidiary Body
for Scientific and Technological Advice (SBSTA) and the Subsid-
iary Body for Implementation (SBI) to consider: FCCC Articles4.8
and 4.9 (adverse effects); compliance; capacity building; activities
implemented jointly (A1J); and the Protocol mechanisms. A Joint
Working Group on compliance met in the evening and contact
groups were convened on non-Annex | communicationsand guide-
linesfor Annex | communications.

JOINT SBI/SBSTA SESSION

ADVERSE EFFECTS: Former SBSTA Chair Kok Kee Chow
(Malaysia) reported on aworkshop on implementation of FCCC
Articles 4.8 and 4.9 (adverse effects) held from 21 - 24 September
1999 in Bonn. Many del egates said the workshop was auseful
exercise. The G-77/CHINA said it had highlighted the need for
another workshop prior to COP-6.

Regarding information gaps on adverse effects, the
MARSHALL ISLANDS called for more robust research on poli-
ciesand measuresin Annex | countries. AUSTRALIA, with
CANADA and the GAMBIA, said the absence of information on
the effect of policiesand measures should not be an obstacleto
meeting the needs of thetruly vulnerable. CANADA and SAMOA
highlighted the need to act through the national communications
process. SENEGAL called for an evauation of vulnerability in
Africaby COP-6.

Ontheimpact of response measures on the economies of oil
producing and other countries, SAUDI ARABIA referred to recent
studies suggesting oil producing countrieswill suffer economically
from response measures and, with KUWAIT and LIBYA, said
developed countries should remove market distortionsin the
energy sector. The US said there was uncertainty over theimpact of
implementation of response measures. JAPAN and the
MARSHALL ISLANDS said consideration of compensation was
unacceptable asit is not provided for inthe FCCC or the Protocal.

On the status of negotiations, severa delegates, including
SAUDI ARABIA, KUWAIT, QATAR andthe UNITED ARAB
EMIRATES, said equa progress must be made on al issues, and
the Buenos Aires Plan of Action (BAPA) should be achieved asa
complete package. UGANDA, BURKINA FASO, the
MARSHALL ISLANDS and SAMOA said not all issuescould be
advanced simultaneously and stated that waiting for a package
would delay action.

Numerous del egates stressed prioritization of the needs of |east
devel oped countries. BANGLADESH suggested that the GEF
establish a separate fund to meet these countries' needs. A contact
group will be convened on thisissue.

COMPLIANCE: On procedures and mechanismsrelating to
compliance under the Kyoto Protocol, Espen Rannenberg, Co-
Chair of the Joint Working Group on compliance (JWG), madea
brief report of theinformal exchange of views on compliance held
inViennabetween 6 - 7 October 1999. I ssues discussed included:
design of and factorstriggering the compliance system; role of the
expert review team and COP/M OP; and the consequences of non-
compliance.

CAPACITY BUILDING: On capacity building, many dele-
gateswelcomed the G77/CHINA draft decision on capacity
building for developing countries, containing alist of developing
country needs, as abasisfor adopting adecision at COP-5.

On recipients of capacity building, the G77/CHINA said these
are developing countriesonly, whilethe EU, KAZAKHSTAN and
otherssaid it included countrieswith economiesin transition.

The MARSHALL ISLANDSwiththe SUDAN, the GAMBIA,
AOSISand CHINA said the process had to be country driven rather
than agency driven and must follow the guidance of the COP. The
PHILIPPINES recommended that capacity building be “for,” “ by”
and “in” developing countries and said the GEF initiativewasthe
antithesis of capacity building. CANADA, supporting the GEF
initiative, urged the GEF to further devel op itsinteragency
approach.

The G77/CHINA referred to itsdraft decision that, inter alia,
requests the Secretariat to prepare aplan to facilitate capacity
building for devel oping countries. He underscored theimportance
of workshops being undertaken with the participation of devel-
oping countries. The CENTRAL AFRICAN REPUBLIC high-
lighted thefutility of short workshops, as devel oping countries
needed continuous ones. The EU suggested: identifying non-
Annex | Parties’ needs by analyzing their national communica-
tions; identifying existing capacities; agreeing on aprocessto
ensurethat priority areas receive appropriate support; and
providing guidance for establishing an assessment of capacity-
building activities on climate change. CANADA supported acoor-
dinated response among existing effortsin capacity building and
proposed three steps: assessment of needs; overview of actions
currently undertaken by various actors; and definition of aclear
scopefor action. AUSTRALIA sought information from the Secre-
tariat on current support for developing countriesin order to iden-
tify gaps and needsfor future work. NORWAY favored an
integrated approach for theidentification of needs. SWITZER-
LAND endorsed a practical approach focused on identifying appro-
priate needsin specific areas. The RUSSIAN FEDERATION
offered technology transfer assistance.

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © (enb@iisd.org) iswritten and edited by PaolaBettelli (pbettelli @iisd.org), Leanne Burney (leanne@iisd.org), Chad Carpenter
(chadc@iisd.org), Angela Churie (churie@I.kth.se), Lavanya Rajamani (lavanya.rajamani @hertford.ox.ac.uk), Chris Spence (spencechris@hotmail.com) and Juliette
Voinov (cedrickohler@msn.com). The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. (pam@iisd.org) and the Managing Editor is Langston James "Kimo" Goree (kimo@iisd.org). The
WWW Content Editor is Peter Doran (pfdoran@ecol ogy.u-net.com). Digital engineering by Andrei Henry (ahenry@iisd.ca), Kenneth M. Tong (k8o@interlog.com) and
Richard Stokes (rstokes@iisd.ca). Photography by Leila Mead (leila@interport.net). French translation by Mongi Gadhoum (mongi.gadoum@enb.intl.tn). Logistics
coordinated by PJ. Goldfeder (pjgold14@aol.com). The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada
(through CIDA), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and Landscape, the United Kingdom Department for International
Development (DFID) and the European Commission (DG-XI). Genera Support for the Bulletin during 1999 is provided by the German Federal Ministry of Environment
(BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Ministries of Environment and Foreign Affairs of
Austria, theMinistries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairsand Ministry of Environment of Finland, the Government of Sweden,
the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and the Ministry for the Environment in Iceland. Specific funding for this
meeting has been provided by the UNFCCC Secretariat. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at (enb@iisd.org) and at tel: +1-212- 644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD
can be contacted by e-mail at (info@iisd.ca) and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth
Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used
in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Managing
Editor. Electronic versions are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satellite image by The
Living Earth, Inc., at http://www.livingearth.com. For information on the ENB, send e-mail to (enb@iisd.org).




Wednesday, 27 October 1999

e

Vol. 12 No. 114 Page 2

On capacity building needs, the G77/CHINA referred toits
draft decision calling on the COPto, inter alia: conduct capacity
building activities; provide the necessary financial and technical
support to strengthen national focal points; promote climate-rel ated
research and studies; and promote capacity building of national
institutionsand expertise. AUSTRALIA, CANADA, JAPAN and
UZBEKISTAN said that capacity building was necessary to take
full advantage of the clean devel opment mechanism (CDM). The
US highlighted the need for an integrated approach to al capacity-
building efforts. CLIMATE ACTION NETWORK supported a
bottom-up approach to capacity building based on local and
regiond initiativesinvolving the NGO community, as many
criteriafor the mechanismsare still unknown, it. A contact group
will be convened, co-chaired by SBI Chair John Ashe and Dan
Reifsnyder (US).

ACTIVITIESIMPLEMENTED JOINTLY: Onthe experi-
encewith AlJ, the G-77/CHINA underlined theimbal ance of the
geographical distribution of pilot projects and urged extension of
the pilot phase. AOSI S said carbon sequestration projects may not
guarantee measurable and long-term effects and expressed concern
over the possibleinclusion of sinks. Withthe MARSHALL
ISLANDS, BOTSWANA and SAMOA, he opposed linking AlJto
the Protocol mechanisms. JAPAN, supported by the EU, said the
experience gained is sufficient for acomprehensive review. With
POLAND, he stressed that an AlJ project should be eligible under
jointimplementation (J1) or CDM if it meetsthecriteriafor eligi-
bility and if the Partiesinvolved agree. The MARSHALL
ISLANDS urged discontinuation of temporary carbon storage
projectsunder AlJ. The US proposed exploring the eligibility of
AlJprojectsunder CDM or JI.

Opposed by AOSIS, BOTSWANA and IRAN, the EU, with
SWITZERLAND, proposed that AlJshould be credited retroac-
tively. Sheidentified thelack of crediting and capacity in the host
countries and high transaction costsfor small projectsasbarriersin
the pilot phase. SWITZERLAND and AUSTRALIA said that
without credit, industrieswould be cautious about AlJ.

IRAN noted the absence of criteriafor assessing and elabo-
rating the benefits of AlJprojectsand said these were subject to
different interpretations by the Parties. He called for a continuation
of the pilot phase without preconditions or credits. BOTSWANA
said introducing crediting would confuse the process. AOSIS drew
attention to theinaccuracies, under-reporting and procedural
complicationsthat makeit inappropriateto credit retrospectively.

The REPUBLIC OF KOREA said that since most AlJ projects
arefinanced though official fundslike ODA and the GEF, credits
certification should be treated carefully. The AFRICAN GROUP
underscored the need to involvelocal communitiesin thedesign
and execution of such projects.

Onthereporting format, SWITZERLAND stressed simplicity.
The US suggested that the Secretariat convene atechnical meeting
on the common reporting format. A contact group will be convened
chaired by Yvo de Boer (Netherlands).

PROTOCOL MECHANISMS: Former SBSTA Chair Chow
introduced the revised synthesis of proposals by Parties on princi-
ples, modalities, rules and guidelines on Protocol mechanisms and
noted that they could form the basisfor adraft negotiating text.

The G-77/CHINA said aCDM decision must precede decisions
on other mechanisms. AUSTRALIA noted the need for consider-
abletechnical work prior to COP-6. The EU noted significant areas
of convergence among Parties but said aceiling on the use of mech-
anismshasto be defined. The US supported parallel progressonthe
mechanismswith priority given to the CDM. With NORWAY and
SWITZERLAND, he suggested refining the synthesisinto adraft
negotiating text. NORWAY further identified the need to decide on
awork planintherun-up to COP-6. AOSI S highlighted the need
for the mechanismsto be based on sound environmental principles

and, with VENEZUELA, called for adequate time for consider-
ation. He added that AOSI Swould not permit mechanismsthat
allow Annex | Partiesto offload domestic responsibilities.
UZBEKISTAN, withthe RUSSIAN FEDERATION, sought clear
definitions of core concepts. CHINA opposed taking asingle deci-
sion on all mechanismsas thiswas not supported by the Protocol.
Herecommended that there be three distinct decisions on the mech-
anisms. SAUDI ARABIA stressed that progresson thisissueis
conditional on progresson other equally important issues. A
contact group, to be chaired by Kok Kee Chow, was asked to revise
and consolidate the viewsinto a draft negotiating text and agree on
awork planintherun-up to COP-6. The G-77/CHINA said that the
reference to the draft negotiating text was unwarranted at this stage.

JOINT WORKING GROUP ON COMPLIANCE

The JWG met in anight session to adopt its organi zation of
work and hear an oral report of theinformal exchange of viewsand
information on compliance at an event held on October 6 - 7 1999
inVienna. It then considered elements of the design, coverage and
functions of acompliance system under the Protocol. The WG
will reconvene on 29 October at 10:00 am.

CONTACT GROUPS

GUIDELINESFOR ANNEX | COMMUNICATIONS: The
contact group on Annex | communications considered the second
part of arevised draft text on Guidelinesfor Annex | communica-
tions. The group discussed sectionsin thetext on: objectivesof the
guidelines, preparing national communications, definitions,
coverage and structure of national communications; the executive
summary; national circumstances; GHG inventory information;
and policies and measures (P& Ms). Delegates agreed to delete the
section on coverage. The EU submitted a proposal to re-structure
the section on national communications. On selection of P& Ms, the
group agreed on the differentiation of policies“adopted,” “imple-
mented” and at a“ planning stage,” for reporting purposes and
called for definitions of theseterms.

NON-ANNEX | COMMUNICATIONS: The contact group
on non-Annex | communications discussed proposal s submitted by
the G-77/Chinaand the EU on consideration of non-Annex |
communications. The G-77/CHINA, opposed by the EU and
others, insisted that its proposal serve asthe basisfor thegroup’s
discussions. Some delegates proposed identification of common
elements between the two proposals. The G-77/CHINA, supported
by others, drew attention to contentious elements, including tech-
nical assessments of non-Annex | communications contained inthe
EU proposal. She questioned the purpose, nature and useful ness of
these assessments. The EU and others said the purpose of technical
assessmentsisto improve non-Annex | communications. The
group agreed to work on adraft text compiling the two proposals.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Whileit was business-as-usual in the Plenary on Tuesday, land
use, land-use change and forestry was the subject of astimulating
side event convened at the behest of the Parties. At the event, the
IPCC took theinnovative step of providing an in-depth progress
report on itswork on LULUCF that wasrequested by SBSTA.
Participants, including NGOs, wel comed the long awaited
exchangewith |PCC expert authorsthat shed light on anissue
previously shrouded in uncertainty.

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY
JOINT SBI/SBSTA: SBI and SBSTA will meetin Plenary at
10:00 am.
CONTACT GROUPS: Contact groupswill be held
throughout the day. Consult the announcement board for details.



